
CITY OF LANSING 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
November 2, 2017 

Call To Order: 
The regular meeting of the Lansing City Council was 
called to order by Mayor Mike Smith at 7:00 p.m.  

Roll Call: 
Mayor Mike Smith called the roll and indicated which 
Councilmembers were in attendance. 

Councilmembers Present: 
Ward 1:  Gene Kirby 
Ward 2:  Andi Pawlowski and Don Studnicka 
Ward 3:  Jesse Garvey and Kerry Brungardt 
Ward 4:  Tony McNeill and Gregg Buehler 
 
Councilmembers Absent:  Dave Trinkle 

OLD BUSINESS:  
Approval of Minutes:  Councilmember Brungardt moved to approve the regular meeting minutes of October 19, 
2017, as presented.  Councilmember Pawlowski seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously approved.  
 
Presentations:  Veterans Day Proclamation: Councilmember Don Studnicka read and presented the Veterans 
Day Proclamation to Felix Sanchez of the Lansing VFW. 

• Mr. Sanchez updated the governing body on several projects the VFW has completed and been associated 
with in the past year within Lansing.  He thanked them for their continued support of Veterans and hoped 
everyone could make it out to the parade. 

Kansas Reads to Preschoolers Week Proclamation:  City Council President Gene Kirby read and presented 
the Kansas Reads to Preschoolers Week Proclamation to Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz. 

• Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz thanked the governing body for their support of the library and invited 
everyone to the festivities that have been planned for the week. 

City Logo Contest Winner Presentation:  City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner and Mayor Mike Smith, presented the 
City Logo contest winner Gwendolyn Logan a certificate of excellence for her work and the first place prize. 

• Gwendolyn Logan thanked the governing body for offering a contest of this nature and thanked them for the 
opportunity to provide the City with something new they can use and it helps build her resume and portfolio as 
a graphic designer. 

Audience Participation:  Mayor Smith called for audience participation and there was none. 
COUNCIL CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA ITEMS:    
Planning Commission Appointment: Councilmember Kirby moved to appoint Marcus Bean to the Lansing 
Planning Commission for a term that will expire on April 30, 2019.  Councilmember Pawlowski seconded the motion.   

• Councilmember Kirby stated I’m glad you’ve been here before and you were told to stick with it you’d end up 
somewhere.  I’m glad you did and now you’re going to be somewhere.  We’ll see how it goes later on. 

o Mayor Smith stated and we expect good things from you. 
 Councilmember Kirby stated you’ve seen he’s application, he’s a lifelong kid who moved back 

home so thank you. 
The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Ordinance No. 991 – Codification of Ordinances for the 2017 Code of the City of Lansing: 
Councilmember Buehler moved to adopt Ordinance No. 991.  Councilmember Pawlowski seconded the motion.  The 
motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Ordinance No. 992 – Fine, Bone, Court Fees & Costs Established by Municipal Court Judge: 
Councilmember Buehler moved to adopt Ordinance No. 992.  Councilmember Pawlowski seconded the motion.  The 
motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Ordinance No. 993 – Fee Schedule Approval: Councilmember Brungardt moved to adopt Ordinance No. 993.  
Councilmember Buehler seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Equipment Replacements Requests: City Administrator Tim Vandall stated we included in the packet the 
requests the department heads submitted to you all. My recommendation, well first off, I should remind you guys what 
we’re doing tonight will just be authorizing department heads to go ahead and get bids for these items.  Anything over 
$15,000.00 would require final Council approval in January or February anyways.  So this is just authorizing everyone 
to get the ball rolling with prices.  A couple of things too I do want to mention we’re in a better place this year than we 
had been in the past so we’re going to be able to do a lot of this stuff without lease-purchasing it, so I know Beth and I 
were really excited that we’re not going to be paying thousands of dollars in financing fees, we should be able to 
purchase these things outright, so we are excited about that.  Now on to the items in the request, first off are items that 
would be funded from the Equipment Replacement Fund, a Kubota gas zero turn deck mower, we’re looking at some 



November 2, 2017 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) .............................................................................................................. Page 2 
 

pretty significant repair costs on that, so that’s why that’s included.  A Parks & Recreation 4x4 1-ton truck, the older 
truck is a 2003 and I believe it had 123,000 miles on it, so that would replace that vehicle. The asphalt roller as you 
guys probably saw in Jeff’s explanation, it doesn’t compact asphalt as well as we would like, and Jeff can give you 
more details on that a little bit later.  I included a 4th thing that’s contingent on other bids coming at or below, and I 
would agree it is a little bit discretionary, but we are having problems with the 2005 or 2006 Dodge Caravan, even 
though it is low miles we’re having problems with the brakes, it vibrates a little bit and we have employees that don’t 
even like driving it, so that’s the reason why that’s in there, but as I stated in the explanation that would be contingent 
on the other things coming in at or below the bids. So those would be the items that would come from the Equipment 
Replacement Fund. Out of the Wastewater Fund, and this is a different pool of money and these funds are already 
there, a half-ton truck; this replaces the Dodge truck, the famous Dodge that we had the air conditioning removed from.  
So Tony would get a half-ton truck to replace a full 1-ton truck. The other item, pavement at the treatment facility, that’s 
getting to be a safety issue, the joints are really bad and have eroded away.  Tony Zell and I have spoken about that a 
little bit and we want to get final estimates and final costs for that wastewater line project before we get bids on this 
because we do want to pay for that project as well in cash, so that’s why we want to wait for that until we move forward 
with the parking lot.  So that’s a summary of the recommendations that are in the council packets, I’ve asked all the 
department heads who have equipment listed to be here, so with that if you guys have any questions. 

• Councilmember Brungardt stated I’ve got a question on the 2006 Dodge Caravan, it would appear to me that a 
vehicle with that kind of mileage, which the Brungardt family would love to have a vehicle will 44,800 miles on 
it, it would be worth looking at seeing exactly what the problems are and maybe spend the money on that end 
to get it fixed and make sure it’s safe and all those kinds of good things, at least get a cost on what it would 
take to fix something like that.  I just wanted to get your thoughts on that. 

o City Administrator Tim Vandall replied I’ll defer to Terri on that. 
 Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz stated in regards to the caravan, we have taken it in two or 

three times to have the brakes fixed and each time we’re told that it’s fixed or that there is 
nothing wrong with it; Jim Magee has taken it in for us.  They’re soft, it vibrates when it gets up 
to 45 miles per hour.  It’s okay for in town driving, but I went to Ottawa today and I took my 
own car because I’m not going to get on the interstate with that vehicle.  We’ve taken it in 
several times for the brakes. 

• Councilmember Brungardt stated I’m not a car guy, but nobody’s talked about tires or rotors? 
o Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz responded they have looked at everything and they keep telling us 

there is nothing wrong with it. 
• Mayor Smith asked Terri how much money have we spent on it, have we put money into it. 

o Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz replied right now, each time we’re taken it in, a few times for brakes 
and I’m not sure what we can do about the rust, it’s starting to rust out in the wheel well, I’m not sure 
that can be fixed.  We’re not having huge repair issues right now but I can look it up. 

 Councilmember Garvey asked are you taking it back to the same place again and again. 
• Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz replied no, Jim has taken it, I believe he’s taken it to 

Speedway once, we took it to DNZ and to Platinum once. 
• Mayor Smith asked have you ever taken it in and said bring it up to where you’re comfortable with it on cost, 

I’m just asking. 
o Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz replied no I have not, and I can look into that. 

 Mayor Smith stated I think that would be a good way of looking at what we’re trying to do here 
if it’s falling apart, 40,000 miles is not many miles. 

• Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz replied no it’s not but it is rusting out too and we’re 
sharing this with the Economic Development Department. 

o Mayor Smith stated don’t get me wrong we’ve had some vehicles with 45,000 
miles and it was costing us, we had engines go out and it cost more than it 
was worth, so we went ahead and purchased, but that’s why I was just 
wondering if you’d done that. 

• City Administrator Tim Vandall stated that was going to be the other thing I was going to remind you guys 
about too, we had two Dodge Caravans for pretty low miles and the goal was to take two old vehicles that are 
having maintenance problems and have one decent vehicle, since the two departments are sharing one 
vehicle instead of each department having one. 

o Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz stated actually we share with Sunshine and Sarah, so we share 
between the three departments. 

• Councilmember Kirby stated off of what Kerry said I mean this is the first time I’m hearing about brakes and all 
that, because my initial reaction is you’re putting 4,500 miles a year on it, that van hasn’t paid for itself yet 
probably.  This is the first that I’m hearing about brakes and all that, which gets me back to your list which was 
very, I mean you laid it down to the nub, you spelled it all out, which to me was beneficial.  Just to say it’s old 
and it’s got a lot of miles.  My livelihood depends on equipment that’s reliable and efficient and run every day, 
so I get that part, but I think the more detail you give us the better off. 



November 2, 2017 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) .............................................................................................................. Page 3 
 

o Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz replied I will do more research. 
 Councilmember Kirby stated and I would say that about probably everything on here. 

• City Administrator Tim Vandall stated since this item is contingent on the other three we can come back after 
we get the other bids and talk about this more, the van. 

• Mayor Smith stated by no means Terri are we saying it’s not to look at I’m saying I’d like more information. 
o Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz replied I will, absolutely. 

• Councilmember Garvey stated maybe it’s because it’s not driven enough.  It sits around a whole lot. 
o Councilmember Pawlowski stated it’s sat around for 10 years. 

 City Administrator Tim Vandall replied it’s been driven more in the last year though since we 
got rid of the other Caravan. 

• Mayor Smith stated I drove it to Hutch or someplace like that for the Mayor’s thing and 
it runs good downhill, but I don’t know what the cost is and that’s why I want to wait to 
see the difference of the cost of new versus putting money into it with only 44,000 
miles.  So any more information you can help us with I know I’d appreciate. 

o Councilmember Kirby stated and that’s my point, I mean she’s got every part, 
how much it costs, right down to the short of labor, because some of those 
items you don’t know what it’ll run and in that regard that helped me on that 
mower. 

• Councilmember McNeill stated I have a question on the fund itself, is there one fund for replacement except 
for the Police Department, how is the fund set up for this. 

o Finance Director Beth Sanford replied the equipment replacement fund, the general, is for all 
departments, then Wastewater.  The Police Department has an Equipment Reserve fund but it’s not a 
huge fund, so we do try to pay for things for the Police Department out of that reserve.  Things like the 
police cars are built into the base budget because those are obviously bigger dollar items and that 
fund wouldn’t be able to support that. 

 Councilmember McNeill asked so how many equipment funds do we have. 
• Finance Director Beth Sanford replied we really just have two.  We have the Police 

and then just the general Equipment Replacement fund.  The Wastewater Equipment 
Reserve is within the Wastewater Fund. 

o Councilmember McNeill responded and it’s separate it just comes out of 
Wastewater funds 

 Finance Director Beth Sanford replied right. 
• Wastewater Utility Director Tony Zell stated there is an 

annual allotment designated as equipment replacement. 
o Councilmember Garvey asked but it’s not a separate 

line item is it. 
 Finance Director Beth Sanford replied it’s a 

line item. 
o Councilmember McNeill stated so I guess my question would be with the whole Wastewater side are 

we looking at that separate since that’s a separate fund, if we rack and stack ‘em are we throwing 
them in the same pool. 

 City Administrator Tim Vandall replied it would be separate. 
• Councilmember McNeill stated third question is why are the mowers under the City Clerk’s office. 

o Councilmember Pawlowski stated that’s the one that they have for City Hall. 
 City Clerk Sarah Bodensteiner replied that’s for the one that mows City Hall, the Annex 

Building and the field next door because we do the yard maintenance for the two buildings. 
• Councilmember Pawlowski stated my question was and we’ve had this discussion before too and I had this 

discussion with both Sarah and Tim, is that I think it’s time we look at it because if Jim mows City Hall with City 
Hall’s mower then the rest of the time it just sits there, so why don’t we have one department that mows. 
Whether it be Jason, I don’t care who’s it is but one department that mows all the City’s property and have all 
the mowing equipment, that way we get the most utilization out of the equipment and some of it doesn’t sit. 
That’s not probably a discussion for here, but it’s a discussion we’re not going to finish tonight, but it’s 
something that we ought to think about or that Tim ought to think about. 

• Mayor Smith asked Tony did you have another question. 
o Councilmember McNeill replied no that was all my questions. 

• Mayor Smith stated Greg did you have something. 
o City Attorney Gregory Robinson stated Mr. Mayor I just wanted to say based on Terri’s comment is 

that if we are publicly indicating that a vehicle may be unsafe, I certainly can’t sit here and recommend 
that this be driven on the street because if there is an accident and we have publicly stated that it may 
be unsafe to operate then what liability would we open up the City to. 



November 2, 2017 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) .............................................................................................................. Page 4 
 

 Councilmember McNeill stated they’ve taken it into a shop and they’ve said there’s nothing 
wrong with it, so it’s an opinion that it’s unsafe. 

• City Attorney Gregory Robinson stated we’ve been told that a shop has said that, the 
shop did not come in here and say that.  Or we’ve had an employee say that they are 
not comfortable driving it and publicly stated.  If we get a statement from the repair 
shop that says that it is safe to drive then I do agree with your statement, however 
that’s not what we have presented here tonight. 

o Councilmember Kerry stated I need some clarification because I don’t know 
what was presented, I never, did anybody hear that is was unsafe. 

 City Attorney Gregory Robinson stated she said it was unsafe to 
drive. 

• City Administrator Tim Vandall stated Terri if you can try to 
get some type of verification from the mechanic. 

o Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz replied I will. 
 Mayor Smith stated Greg we understand 

your point, I think the guidance was for Terri 
to go and have it checked out. 

o City Attorney Gregory Robinson stated I have no 
problem with that, I was just saying if there are 
concerns about a vehicle then we should consider 
whether or not it should be operated on the street 
until we get that information. 

• Mayor Smith stated I totally agree and it’s your job to remind 
us and I want to thank you. 

• Councilmember Kirby asked you say you’ve had it where, Speedway. 
o Library Director Terri Wojtalewicz replied Speedway, DNZ, and Platinum.  I will get further information. 

 Councilmember Garvey stated Speedway is Dodge so they would be able to fix it. 
• Councilmember Pawlowski stated so you’d think.  So all we’re talking about, none of 

this stuff was on our budget? 
o City Administrator Tim Vandall replied this is separate from like C and S 

requests, so this is just replacing things that we already have. 
 Councilmember Kirby stated like the twenty year old mower. 

• City Administrator Tim Vandall replied yes. 
• Councilmember Pawlowski stated Sarah and I had a discussion about something that we discussed prior to 

her tenure here and prior to Tim’s tenure here I think, and it was about document storage, and I said to her if 
we have money that we can spend, we had that discussion four or five years ago and we’ve never solved that 
problem.  If we have money that we can put other places I think it’s time, as I remember I think it was a huge 
number when we did it, but I think it’s time that we also look at that. 

o City Administrator Tim Vandall asked do you remember what it was. 
 Councilmember Pawlowski replied it was a couple hundred thousand dollars, wasn’t it Don.  It 

was a lot.  Like Sarah said if something bad happens and we have a fire or whatever and all of 
our old documents are here, then they’re gone.  

• Councilmember Kirby stated they are not just here they are at the Activity Center too. 
o Councilmember Garvey asked what number was it on the list though, it was 

like eight wasn’t it. 
 Councilmember Pawlowski replied I don’t know, I mean the last time 

we had that discussion was a long time ago. 
• City Attorney Gregory Robinson stated I think there was some discussion by the League in reference to when 

Greensburg got hit by that tornado about some kind of action plan or something that cities can take. 
o Councilmember Pawlowski stated and we had a discussion and punted it because we didn’t have any 

money, it’s been four or five years ago I think, if I remember correctly. So my question looking at all 
this other stuff is maybe could we also look at some of that?  And it’s nothing we’re going to do right 
now. 

 City Administrator Tim Vandall replied yeah, we can bid that out and get a price.  I thought you 
were going to say like twenty-five thousand dollars or something like that. 

• Councilmember Pawlowski stated I think it was six figures somewhere because it was 
scary. 

• Councilmember McNeill stated the whole idea would be to start doing it and you can actually contract 
somebody over time by task order every year to do x amount of documents and get them digitized and over 
time we’d have them all done, but we could start doing something. 



November 2, 2017 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) .............................................................................................................. Page 5 
 

• Councilmember Pawlowski stated if we’ve gotten ourselves into such the shape that we have with money 
where we could do something like that in addition to Jeff doing some of the water things that we’ve got, it 
seems to me like we’ve got to; and Sarah is so good about not asking for stuff. 

o City Attorney Gregory Robinson stated Sarah may be able to speak to this but there is also certain 
retention requirements and it may not be everything, but you could actually carve out what you don’t 
have to backup so that may cut down your cost a lot as well. 

 Councilmember Pawlowski stated and I think we also, and I don’t know what Steve’s situation 
is, but didn’t we also have that discussion about Steve’s stuff too.  I know it’d be separate. 

• Councilmember Kirby stated Steve’s stuff has to be kept for fifty years. 
o Councilmember Pawlowski stated so I think maybe we ought to put that on, 

my request would be that we task Sarah to research it. 
• Councilmember Garvey stated not to totally disagree with you, but these are moving part of the City that keep 

the City rolling.  That’s stuff that’s stored in a room that nobody really thinks about hardly ever. 
o Councilmember Buehler stated there are regulatory requirements. 

 Councilmember Pawlowski stated but the problem is when you need them and think about 
them then it’s too late. 

• City Administrator Tim Vandall replied we can get prices and report back. 
• Councilmember Pawlowski stated we have a van, I don’t know if she wants to drive that one, I mean Steve’s 

van. 
• Councilmember Kirby stated I’ll make the motion to authorize the purchase of up to $130,000.00. 

o Councilmember Pawlowski stated no, it’s not a purchase. 
 Councilmember Kirby stated but that’s what it says. 

• City Administrator Tim Vandall replied everything over fifteen thousand has to come 
back to you guys. 

o Councilmember Garvey stated so you’re going out for bids. 
 City Administrator Tim Vandall replied yeah. 

• Councilmember Pawlowski stated make up your own motion. 
o City Administrator Tim Vandall stated I should have 

worded that better sorry. 
 
Councilmember Kirby moved to authorize City Staff to get bids of up to $130,000.00 of replacement equipment from 
the Equipment Reserve Fund, and $33,000.00 from the Wastewater Fund.  Councilmember Pawlowski seconded the 
motion.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
 

REPORTS: 
Department Heads:  Public Works Director Jeff Rupp provided costs for a survey to be completed west of 7th Street 
and north of Beth per the previous meetings request from the Council in response to resident Russ Connell’s request 
to consider vacating an alley.  The costs ranged between $5,750 and $9,600. The survey would provide clear 
boundary lines and identify any encroachments should an alley split be considered. The Council wondered if it were 
possible to vacate a portion of an alley or if you had to vacate the entire alley.  City Attorney Gregory Robinson 
advised that he needed to do further research on that topic and he will provide an update to the Council at a future 
date.  The Council agreed that further steps cannot be discussed until information from the City Attorney is received. 
City Attorney:  City Attorney Gregory Robinson said as Veterans Day is approaching, if anyone hasn’t been to the 
World War I museum in Kansas City, they should do so because it is the only one dedicated to World War I in the 
nation and it’s a very nice museum.  
City Engineer:  City Engineer had nothing to report. 
City Administrator: City Administrator Tim Vandall mentioned that the deadline for the Fire Board applications was 
Friday, October 27th and at that point nothing had been received; however an application has been received since 
then, after the position was re-posted.  He also stated that a citizen request has been received to change the hours of 
Halloween treat-or-treating to an hour shorter than what is currently posted.  There have been no major issues with the 
times that the City has observed over the last several years, so unless the Council felt otherwise, they were not going 
to change the hours of treat-or-treating.  He finished his report with advising the Council of the changes to the museum 
schedule of hours, to be open 1 day a week and by appointment as well.  Staff will divvy up duties in the meantime and 
the January Work Session is where the Council will have a chance to fully review and discuss the museum in full. 
Governing Body:  Councilmember Kirby congratulated the Parks Department and Library for a good job on the 
Spooky Center, as well as other staff who worked the event.  There was a great turn out and it was very fun for all. 
Councilmember Garvey congratulated the Logo Contest Winner for her design. 



November 2, 2017 Council Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) .............................................................................................................. Page 6 
 

Councilmember Buehler echoed Councilmember Garvey’s sentiment and provided a fun fact, on this day in 1948, 
Harry S. Truman defeated Thomas E. Dewey to the surprise of everyone, which was known as the greatest 
presidential upset in history, until last year. 
Councilmember McNeill thanked Marcus Bean for volunteering to serve on the Planning Commission. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Councilmember McNeill moved to adjourn.  Councilmember Brungardt seconded the motion.  
The motion was unanimously approved.  The meeting was adjourned at 7:48 p.m.  
 

 
     

ATTEST:       Michael W. Smith, Mayor 
 
     
Sarah Bodensteiner, City Clerk 


	CITY OF LANSING
	Call To Order:
	Roll Call:
	Councilmembers Present:

	OLD BUSINESS:
	Reports:


